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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
1 Union Street

	Historic Name:
Empire Fire Company Engine House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
firehouse

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1855

	Source:  local history, historic maps

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
wood clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


none

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


converted to dwelling, ca. 1880

one-story addition on north side


window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:     0.11 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the west side of Union Street one lot south of the intersection with East Main Street and opposite Murch Park. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Empire Fire Company Engine House is a two-story wood frame fire house later converted to a dwelling located on the westerly side of Union Street at East Main Street.  Once containing vehicle doors, the front-gable facade now is composed of a first story with an entrance with a hood mounted on turned bracing offset by two windows and three windows evenly spaced across the second story.  The gable end is finished as a pediment with a full entablature across its base.  This latter feature probably survives from the building’s original use as a fire house.  Side and rear walls each contain two orderly tiers of windows, which also are likely original to the building, with the southerly side altered with the addition of a door at the rear corner.  Wood clapboard siding, corner pilasters and window trim appear to be products of a recent renovation, which also replaced wood window sash. 
The building is sited close to the street in the center of the frontage with paved parking spaces on either side.  A rear yard is raised on a terrace with stone retaining walls.
The Empire Fire Company Engine House is a rare and distinctive example of a mid-19th-century wood frame fire house.  In spite of its early conversion to a dwelling, the original function of the building still is discernible.  Built ca. 1855, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     

HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    

The 1872 map of Georgetown shows two buildings (now 1 & 3 Union St.) labeled “Empire No. 2,” to designate the second of the town’s fire companies. In the late 1880s local historian Henry Mighill Nelson described this “engine-house” as being “on Main, very near Library Street” and owned at that time by the grocer Joseph Edmund Bailey, as the 1884 map indicates. “This, for about twenty years, was occupied by Empire or No. 2 Company,” Nelson wrote.
 Exactly when Bailey acquired the building is not yet clear, but by about 1875 the Empire No. 2 engine had been moved to the Central Fire Company station on Middle Street.
  Thus, the building at 1 Union Street was built as an engine house ca. 1855. (Its neighbor at 3 Union Street looks to have been an associated dwelling.)  The 1856 map of the village shows a building in this location unlabeled except for its proximity to the lands of Enoch and Elizabeth Dresser, who had lived next door at 41 East Main Street since around 1800.
By 1880 J. E. Bailey lived on Middle Street and ran his grocery store in what was called Bailey’s Block in the center of town, so he probably used this building for its rental income; it was probably he who converted it to a dwelling. In October 1898 he sold the property to Dennis Donoghue, who owned and occupied the old Dresser homestead at 41 East Main Street, just north of this building. Donoghue too probably rented the building for income until 1912, when he sold it to Mary (or Mamie) E. Christian.

Christian, born Mary Lizzie Witham in Georgetown in 1876, was shown as Mamie Elizabeth Witham in 1895, when she married Ernest Melvin Christian, also a Georgetown native and the son of house carpenter Charles H. Christian of Amesbury and his wife Mary E. Sargent Christian of Haverhill. At the time of their marriage, Ernest Christian was working as a printer and his wife Mary as a compositor. By 1900 he had become a street railway conductor, and the couple had had a son, Guy Newton Christian, in 1896. 
Directories show the Christian family on Union Street from at least 1901, and it seems likely that Donoghue was renting this house to them. By 1910 Mary E. Christian was working as a dressmaker from her home, and her widowed mother-in-law Mary E. Sargent Christian was living with the family. By 1916, then directories began to show street numbers, the Christians are shown at 1 Union Street. The 1920 census shows Ernest Christian living at 1 Union and working as a wood heel shipper; Mary was still a dressmaker, son Guy was twenty-three and without occupation, and the family had two adolescent boarders. Why the census shows Ernest Christian in the household is puzzling, for he had died in January of that year. Guy Christian, a chemist and chemistry teacher who had worked during World War I making munitions for E. I. Du Pont De Nemours and Company in Virginia, continued to own the 1 Union Street house until 1947. In the 1930s Christian taught school in or near Cleveland, but by the Second World War he had returned to Georgetown and was living at 5 Union Street with his wife Mildred; by 1957 he was teaching in Malden and running an antiques business from that address. He also rented 1 Union Street. In 1932 the directory shows the dressmaker Gladys E. Bagley in the house; during World War II the musician Thomas William Wilmarth and his wife Gertrude rented the property; their son Paul acquired 41 East Main Street in the early 1950s.
In September 1947 Guy Christian sold 1 Union Street to Robert M. and Betty Jones. Born in Georgetown about 1924, Robert Jones was the son of shoe laster Harold Jones and his wife Ruth; he grew up on Elm Street. Jones married Britain native Betty Rowland by the time of this sale, and the couple’s eldest son, Kenneth Rowland Jones, was born in Georgetown in April of that year. Jones, trained as a machinist, worked as an assembler at General Electric in the late 1950s. He and his wife remained at 1 Union for the rest of their lives. Robert Jones died in November 2003, and his son and estate administrator Kenneth sold the property in January 2005 to current owners Edward S. and Margaret S. Maccaro.
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1 Union Street: views from N (top) and W (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Empire Fire Company Engine House is a rare and distinctive example of a mid-19th-century wood frame fire house.  In spite of its early conversion to a dwelling, the original function of the building still is discernible.  Built ca. 1855, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Henry M. Nelson, “Town of Georgetown History,” in History of Essex County, Massachusetts, with Biographical Sketches of Many of Its Pioneers and Prominent Men, ed. D. Hamilton Hurd (Philadelphia: J. W. Lewis and Co., 1888), 855.


� See photographs on page 27 of Anthony Mitchell Sammarco, Images of America: Georgetown (Portsmouth, NH: Arcadia Publishing, 2002).


� Joseph E. Bailey to Dennis Donoghue, 26 October 1898, SED 1564:179; Denis Donoghue to Mary E. Christian, 11 May 1912, SED 2148:48.


� Guy N. Christian to Robert M. and Betty Jones, 12 September 1947, SED 3568:500; Kenneth R. Jones, administrator estate Robert M. Jones, to Edward S. and Margaret S. Maccaro, 4 January 2005, SED 23837:276.
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